CRIME (OVERSEAS PRODUCTION ORDERS) ACT 2019

EXPLANATORY NOTES

What these notes do

These Explanatory Notes relate to the Crime (Overseas Production Orders) Act 2019 (c. 5) which received Royal Assent on 12 February 2019.

- These Explanatory Notes have been prepared by the Home Office in order to assist the reader of the Act. They do not form part of the Act and have not been endorsed by Parliament.
- These Explanatory Notes explain what each part of the Act will mean in practice; provide background information on the development of policy; and provide additional information on how the Act will affect existing legislation in this area.
- These Explanatory Notes might best be read alongside the Act. They are not, and are not intended to be, a comprehensive description of the Act.

Table of Contents

Subject	Page of these Notes
Overview of the Act	3
Policy background	background prial extent and application entary on provisions of Act ction 1: Making of overseas production order on application ction 2: Appropriate officers ction 3: Meaning of "electronic data" and "excepted electronic data" ction 4: Requirements for making of order ction 5: Contents of order stion 7: Variation or revocation of order stion 7: Variation or revocation of order stion 9: Restrictions on service of order stion 10: Retention of electronic data and use as evidence stion 11: Procedural matters stion 12: Notice of application for order; journalistic data stion 13: Effect of notice of application stion 14: Means of service stion 15: Application of hect to service police stion 15: Application of international agreements for purposes of section 52 of Investigatory Powers Act 2016 11 ction 16: Designation of international agreements for purposes of section 52 of Investigatory Powers Act 2016 11 ction 17: Regulations stion 18: Interpretation stion 19: Extent stion 19: Extent stion 19: Extent stion 20: Commencement stion 21: Short title encement 12 d documents 13 A - Territorial extent and application in the United Kingdom 13
Legal background	
Territorial extent and application	5
Commentary on provisions of Act	6
Section 4: Requirements for making of order Section 5: Contents of order Section 7: Variation or revocation of order Section 8: Inclusion of non-disclosure requirement in order Section 9: Restrictions on service of order Section 10: Retention of electronic data and use as evidence Section 11: Procedural matters Section 12: Notice of application for order: journalistic data Section 13: Effect of notice of application Section 14: Means of service Section 15: Application of Act to service police	6 6 7 8 8 9 9 9 9 10 10 10 10 11 ection 52 of Investigatory Powers Act 201611 11 11
Commencement	12
Related documents	12
Section 1: Making of overseas production order on application Section 2: Appropriate officers Section 3: Meaning of "electronic data" and "excepted electronic data" Section 4: Requirements for making of order Section 5: Contents of order Section 5: Contents of order Section 7: Variation or revocation of order Section 9: Restrictions on service of order Section 10: Retention of electronic data and use as evidence Section 11: Procedural matters Section 12: Notice of application for order: journalistic data Section 13: Effect of notice of application Section 14: Means of service Section 15: Application of Act to service police Section 16: Designation of international agreements for purposes of section 52 of Investigatory Powers Act 201611 Section 17: Regulations Section 19: Extent Section 19: Extent Section 20: Commencement Section 21: Short title Section 21: Short title Section 21: Short title Section 22: Short title Section 23: Short title Section 24: A Territorial extent and application in the United Kingdom 13 Sentex B – Hansard References	
Annex B – Hansard References	14
Annex C – Progress of Bill Table	15

Overview of the Act

1 The Crime (Overseas Production Orders) Act grants law enforcement agencies and prosecuting authorities the power to apply for and obtain electronic data directly from service providers (those who create, process, communicate or store electronic data) for the purposes of criminal investigations and prosecutions. Such orders may only be used when permitted under an international co-operation arrangement between the UK and the country where the subject of the order is located. Each request will be subject to robust scrutiny in UK courts, mirroring the existing safeguards and tests already in place for domestic powers to obtain investigatory and evidential material.

Policy background

- 2 Electronic information is increasingly important for the investigation and prosecution of criminal offences. A significant number of companies providing services which generate and/or store electronic data are located outside the UK. This means that while data could be generated by any user, that data can be managed, processed or stored by a company not in the UK, meaning it is beyond the reach of existing domestic court orders. This is because domestic court orders either cannot be made where the data is not located in or accessible from the UK or, where they can be made, they cannot be served extra-territorially i.e. on entities outside the UK.
- 3 For data that is beyond the reach of domestic orders, a form of judicial co-operation, Mutual Legal Assistance (MLA), is available. Under MLA, a requesting country can formally request assistance from an executing authority or country who is then responsible for collating the evidence, often using their own coercive orders or warrants. However, in some cases, the MLA process is not timely enough to contribute to an investigation or secure a prosecution.
- 4 The COPO Act addresses the constraints of existing domestic court orders and the limits of MLA in being able to compel the production of electronic data from another jurisdiction quickly. The Act does this by creating a new overseas production order which has extra-territorial effect, meaning that these orders are granted by UK courts exerting jurisdiction over evidence and persons outside the UK. This jurisdiction may only be asserted where an international co-operation arrangement to which the UK is a party permits this to happen, and has been designated for the purposes of the Act. An international co-operation arrangement will be in the form of a treaty with another country or countries, which relates to the provision of MLA in connection with the investigation or prosecution of offences. The Act reflects the anticipated framework required to implement such international agreements in future.
- 5 The practical effect of this Act is to empower a UK court (at the request of an appropriate officer as defined in the Act) to require the production of stored electronic information directly from a person or company located overseas, such as an overseas service provider, as it would if the information were located or controlled in the UK.
- 6 The Bill was introduced in the House of Lords on 27 June 2018. During its passage through the House of Lords, the Government introduced an amendment to ensure that only those international agreements which have been laid before Parliament under section 20(1)(a) of the Constitutional Reform and Governance Act 2010 may be designated as international co-operation arrangements for the purposes of the legislation. During its passage through the House of Commons, a number of Government amendments were made to the Bill in response to concerns raised by Members on both sides of the House. These included amendments on: obligating the Government to seek death penalty assurances in connection with relevant

international agreements; ensuring that journalists are given notice of applications for overseas production orders in appropriate cases (unless relevant exemptions apply); introducing a 'relevant evidence' test where a court is considering making an order; defining the term "criminal purpose" for the purposes of determining whether data is journalistic data; and including a statutory override to clarify the interaction between the Act and data protection legislation. Amendments relating to death penalty assurances in international agreements were the most scrutinised element of the Act throughout its passage.

Legal background

7 This Act creates a new, standalone legal regime for UK law enforcement agencies and prosecuting authorities to obtain stored electronic data. Section 16 amends section 52 of the Investigatory Powers Act so as to require the Secretary of State to seek death penalty assurances in connection with a relevant international agreement, if the country or territory in question retains capital punishment. Apart from this provision, the Act does not amend existing legislation except for consequential purposes. The Act draws on existing legislative provisions that relate to the obtaining of material to assist a criminal investigation or prosecution such as the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (see in particular the powers under section 9 of, and Schedule 1 to, that Act to obtain a production order requiring the disclosure of special procedure material).

Territorial extent and application

- 8 Section 19 sets out the territorial extent of the Act, that is, the jurisdictions in which the Act will form part of the law. The Act extends to the whole of the United Kingdom with the exception of consequential amendments in Section 10 (which have the extent of the enactment being amended).
- 9 The Act relates to a mixture of reserved and, in Northern Ireland, excepted and devolved matters. The Act relates in part to reserved/excepted matters such as international relations, telecommunications, and powers for investigating serious crime including terrorism.
- 10 The Act also relates to matters within the legislative competence of the Scottish Parliament and Northern Ireland Assembly as it provides a means for devolved law enforcement officials to seek electronic data not covered by specific reservations in relation to a wide range of serious offences, some of which are not reserved/excepted.
- 11 Separate commencement provisions exist within the Act so that the Northern Ireland Executive may consider the application of these powers once it is restored.
- 12 The Act does not relate to any matters which are devolved under the Government of Wales Act 2006.
- 13 See the table in Annex A for a summary of the position regarding territorial extent and application in the United Kingdom.

Commentary on provisions of Act

Section 1: Making of overseas production order on application

- 14 This section enables a judge to make, on application by an appropriate officer, an overseas production order. An overseas production order is an order that requires an overseas person (pursuant to the requirements for making an order in section 4) to produce stored electronic data (defined in section 3) or requires such a person to give access to electronic data.
- 15 The section defines an overseas production order and sets out what it must contain, including in relation to an underlying international co-operation arrangement and the scope of data that can be sought by an applicant.
- 16 An application for an overseas production order may only be made by an appropriate officer (defined in section 2) who is required to specify or describe the electronic data being sought in the application. When making an application, the appropriate officer must have reasonable grounds to believe that the electronic data that is sought and specified in the application does not include or consist of excepted electronic data. Excepted electronic data is defined in section 3.
- An application for an overseas production order must specify the international co-operation arrangement by reference to which the application is being made. Only arrangements which have been designated for the purposes of the Act by the Secretary of State may be specified. Subsection (5) provides the Secretary of State with the power to make regulations containing such designations. Only an international cooperation arrangement that is a "relevant treaty" relating to co-operation or mutual assistance in the investigation or prosecution of criminal matters to which the UK is a party may be designated. Subsection (6) defines a relevant treaty as a treaty that has been laid by a Minister of the Crown before Parliament under s20(1)(a) of the Constitutional Reform and Governance Act 2010.
- 18 Subsection (7) defines "judge" for the purposes of the Act, with the effect that only the types or descriptions of judges listed have the power to make an overseas production order.

Section 2: Appropriate officers

- 19 This section defines the meaning of "appropriate officer", with the effect that only those categories or descriptions of persons listed can make an application for an overseas production order. Separate provision is made in relation to England, Wales and Northern Ireland; and in relation to Scotland.
- 20 Some categories of appropriate officers may only exercise functions under the Act if they are exercising that function for a particular purpose. For example, an accredited financial investigator may only exercise—the function when it is for the purpose of certain types of proceeds of crime investigations. These limitations are designed to ensure that it is only where the appropriate officer is exercising functions related to their role in the investigation or prosecution of criminal conduct that they may apply for an overseas production order.
- 21 The Secretary of State may specify additional descriptions of appropriate officers by way of regulations. Before exercising that power in relation to Scotland, the Secretary of State must consult the Scottish Ministers (see section 17).

Section 3: Meaning of "electronic data" and "excepted electronic data"

22 This section sets out the scope of the applications and orders in relation to material that can and cannot be specified or described in the application or order, by defining "electronic data" and "excepted electronic data" and related terms.

- 23 "Excepted electronic data", which cannot be specified or described in an application or order, includes data that is subject to legal privilege which is defined in subsection (6).
- "Excepted electronic data" also includes confidential personal records. A personal record is defined in subsection (7) as being a record concerning any individual, living or dead, that could identify the individual and which relates to their physical or mental health (e.g. their medical records), spiritual counselling or assistance given to them, and/or counselling or assistance given to them for the purpose of their welfare. Such records are confidential if created in circumstances giving rise to an obligation of confidentiality to the person to whom they relate, e.g. medical records, and if this obligation continues to be owed. Personal records held subject to a restriction on disclosure, or an obligation of secrecy, contained in an enactment are also confidential personal records.
- 25 Subsection (4) further limits the kinds of electronic data that can be specified or described in applications and orders in certain circumstances by providing that, if the overseas production order is sought against a person who is a telecommunications operator, communications data is to be treated as "excepted electronic data". "Telecommunications operator" and "communications data" are given the same meaning as in the Investigatory Powers Act 2016.
- Where an application for an overseas production order is made for the purposes of a terrorist investigation (other than a terrorist financing investigation), subsection (5) operates so as remove the restriction on specifying or describing confidential personal records created by subsection 3(b). This reflects the equivalent domestic production order regime for terrorist investigations under the Terrorism Act 2002 (and "terrorist investigation" and "terrorist financing investigation" have the same meaning as in that Act).

Section 4: Requirements for making of order

- 27 This section sets out requirements which must be satisfied before an overseas production order may be made.
- 28 Under subsection (2), the judge considering an application must be satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that the person against whom the order is sought, operates or is based in a country or territory which is outside the UK. The country or territory in which the person operates or is based must be party to an international co-operation arrangement with the UK which has been designated under section 1 (and which the person applying for the order is required to specify in the application by virtue of section 1(2)(a)). Subsection (8) sets out when a person is taken to be operating in or based in a country or territory outside the UK.
- 29 Under subsection (3) the judge must also be satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that an indictable offence has been committed, and that proceedings for that offence have already been commenced, or the offence is being investigated. Alternatively, the judge must be satisfied that the order is sought for the purposes of a terrorist investigation. This reflects the criteria which apply when a production order is sought under corresponding domestic legislation (see e.g. paragraph 6(2) of Schedule 5 to the Terrorism Act 2000).
- 30 Under subsection (4), the judge must be satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that the person against whom the order is sought has in their possession, or has in their control, all or part of the data being sought.
- 31 Under subsection (5), the judge must be satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that some or all of the data that is being applied for will be of substantial value to the investigation or proceedings.

- 32 Under subsection (6), the judge must be satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that all or part of the electronic data specified or described in an application for an overseas production order is likely to be relevant evidence in respect of the offence to which the application relates. "Relevant evidence" means anything that would be admissible in proceedings in respect of that offence. Proceedings in respect of an offence would include a person's trial for that offence, but also other elements of the criminal process such as proceedings in relation to the making or enforcement of a confiscation order, where a person has been convicted of the offence. This relevant evidence requirement does not apply to orders sought for the purposes of a terrorist investigation, so as to reflect the domestic position under the Terrorism Act 2000.
- 33 Under subsection (7), the judge must be satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for believing that it is in the public interest for all or part of the electronic data specified or described in the application to be produced. In considering whether something is in the public interest, the judge must consider the likely benefit to the proceedings or investigation if the electronic data is produced or made available, and also the circumstances under which the person who would be required to produce the data under the order has possession or control of it.
- 34 The Secretary of State may specify further additional requirements (by way of regulations) that must be met in order for an overseas production order to be made (Section 4(1)(b)). Notwithstanding the existence of any additional requirements introduced by virtue of this provision (which may be specified to apply to all or to a category of applications), the requirements set out in subsections (2) to (7) will still have to be met in every case.

Section 5: Contents of order

- 35 The purpose of this section is to set out what the order must or must not contain, in terms of specifying the data that is to be produced, or to which access is to be given, where the judge is satisfied that, based on the application before them, an order should be made. The judge must not specify or describe data in the order which he or she has reasonable grounds for believing consists of or includes excepted electronic data.
- 36 The order may be for all or part of the data requested in the application. In reviewing the application, the judge may determine that only part of the data has met the necessary requirements and, in this event, only this part of the requested data should be identified in the order (consistent with the implicit requirement to exercise the order-making power reasonably).
- 37 Subsection (1) explains that an order may be made in respect of all or part of the data sought in the application subject to the exceptions in subsection (2). Subsection (2) explains that the judge may not include excepted electronic data in the order. Subsection (3) explains that the judge cannot include data in relation to which other legal tests in section 4 have not been satisfied.

Section 7: Variation or revocation of order

38 This section permits a judge to vary or revoke an overseas production order where a person defined in subsection (2) makes an application. The person affected by the order may apply for a variation or revocation, as may the appropriate officer who applied for it. Likewise, the Secretary of State or Lord Advocate who is responsible for serving the order (see section 9), may also apply for it to be varied or revoked.

39 The application for a variation must specify the relevant designated international co-operation arrangement by reference to which it is made, and must specify or describe the data in respect of which the varied order is sought. Excepted electronic data may not be specified, and the judge may only vary the order to the extent that the requirements imposed by section 4 continue to be fulfilled.

Section 8: Inclusion of non-disclosure requirement in order

- 40 This section enables the judge who is making an overseas production order to include a requirement on the person against whom the order is made, not to disclose the existence or contents of the order unless leave is given by a judge (as defined in section 1) or with written permission from the appropriate officer who applied for the order or an equivalent officer.
- 41 When imposing a non-disclosure requirement, subsection (3) requires a judge to specify when that requirement expires (a non-disclosure requirement cannot be open ended).
- 42 At the time of revoking an overseas production order, the judge may order that any unexpired non-disclosure requirement imposed as part of that order is to continue to have effect. This may be appropriate, for example, where it is clear to the judge that a further overseas production order may be sought. Such an order may specify or describe a different time when the non-disclosure requirement is to expire than that specified or described in the overseas production order that is being revoked.

Section 9: Restrictions on service of order

- 43 This section provides that the only person who may serve an overseas production order made in England, Wales or Northern is the Secretary of State. In relation to an order made in Scotland, the only person who may serve it is the Lord Advocate. An overseas production order may only be served if the Secretary of State or, as the case may be, the Lord Advocate consider that to do so would be in accordance with a designated international co-operation agreement.
- 44 An overseas production order must be served within three months, beginning with the day on which it is made. If it is not served within this period, then it is treated as having been quashed and ceases to have effect.

Section 10: Retention of electronic data and use as evidence

- 45 This section relates to the retention of electronic data produced under an overseas production order. It permits the retention of electronically stored data for as long as is necessary in all the circumstances, subject to the applicable obligations on the processing of personal data in the data protection legislation (defined in section 18), including for use as evidence in proceedings in respect of an offence.
- 46 Subsections (3), (4) and (5) ensure that the data produced under an overseas production order can be used as evidence in UK criminal proceedings without further formality.

Section 11: Procedural matters

- 47 This section provides that rules of court may be used to specify the process that should be followed by the court in relation to proceedings that relate to overseas production orders (which include proceedings for the variation, making or revocation of an order under section 8(4) or 13(3) or 4(b)).
- 48 Under subsection (4), orders made under the Act in England and Wales by a judge entitled to exercise the jurisdiction of the Crown Court, or by a Crown Court judge in Northern Ireland, have effect as if they were orders of the Crown Court. The effect of this provision is that a person who fails to comply with such an order may be held in contempt in the same way as if

These Explanatory Notes relate to the Crime (Overseas Production Orders) Act 2019 (c. 5) which received Royal Assent on 12 February 2019

they had failed to comply with a domestic production order. Similar provision in relation to Scotland is not necessary to ensure that non-compliance with an overseas production order is also enforceable there through contempt proceedings. This provision does not apply to orders made in the service jurisdiction by a Judge Advocate (see section 15 (application of the Act to service police), which contains a separate mechanism for non-compliance).

Section 12: Notice of application for order: journalistic data

49 This section stipulates that an application for an order must be made on notice if there are reasonable grounds for believing the electronic data sought consists of or includes journalistic data, subject to the exceptions in subsection (6). Where this provision applies, this section sets out that notice of the application must be served on the person against whom the overseas production order is sought (e.g. a communications service provider) and, if different, the person by whom or on whose behalf the journalistic data is stored (i.e. the journalist). This will enable those put on notice (including journalists) to be party to any such application heard by a court. Subsection 4 of this section sets out that a judge may direct that notice of an application is not required to be served on a journalist in cases where notice would prejudice the investigation of an indictable offence or a terrorist investigation, or where practically it would not be possible to identify or contact the relevant person.

Section 13: Effect of notice of application

- 50 Section 13 provides that a person who has been given notice of an application for an overseas production order must not hide, destroy or alter the electronic data specified in the application, and must not disclose the making of the application or its contents to any person without the leave of a judge or written permission from the person applying for the order or an equivalent officer. The aim of this provision is to protect evidence (and prevent prejudice to an investigation) whilst providing the opportunity for affected parties to participate in proceedings considering access to such material.
- 51 Subsections (3), (4) and (5) set out when the duty ceases to apply. Under subsection (3), a judge may order that the duties imposed by this section should continue to apply even where the application for the overseas production order is dismissed or abandoned. For example, this may apply where not to do so may prejudice the investigation. A judge may also order (under subsection (4) that the duty of non-disclosure (see subsection (1)(b)) should continue to apply after the point at which an order is made on the application., for example, where to notify a person would result in the subject being tipped off and impacting negatively on an investigation. In both cases, the judge must specify or describe when the duty is to cease to apply. Rules of Court will govern the procedure for applications to vary or revoke such orders.

Section 14: Means of service

52 This section sets out how an order, notice of an application, and any other documents made by a court relating to an overseas production order can be served on a person. Such order, notice or document can be served, including electronically (e.g. service via email), by any means set out and permitted by rules of court. Additionally, service can be affected on a person outside the UK by serving it on their principal UK office or nominated UK address or, in certain circumstances, by making it available for inspection at a place in the UK. Where a person has no principal office in the UK, documents can also be served at any place in the UK where that person carries on business or conducts business activities. This would include, for example, the London office of a telecommunications company incorporated in another country. Service can also be made in accordance with such administrative arrangements as might be made by the Secretary of State or, in relation to Scotland, the Lord Advocate.

Section 15: Application of Act to service police

53 This section enables a judge advocate to make an overseas production order on an application by a member of a service police force, for the purposes of investigating or prosecuting certain offences within the service jurisdiction. The provision makes further modifications to the Act to reflect the differences between the service jurisdiction and the UK general criminal jurisdictions, including in relation to enforcement (see subsections (4) to (6)).

Section 16: Designation of international agreements for purposes of section 52 of Investigatory Powers Act 2016

This section amends section 52 of the Investigatory Powers Act 2016, which sets out the conditions which need to be met in order that a telecommunications operator may intercept the communications of an individual at the request of the authorities of another country. Those conditions include that the request is made pursuant to a "relevant international agreement" to which the United Kingdom is a party, and which has been designated for the purposes of that section. Where the other country is one which retains the death penalty, this section restricts the Secretary of State's ability to designate a relevant international agreement unless he or she has sought a written assurance or written assurances relating to the non-use of information obtained by virtue of that agreement in connection with proceedings for an offence where the death penalty might be imposed.

Section 17: Regulations

- 55 This section makes provision for the regulations that may be made by the Secretary of State under the Act. Where the Act confers a power to make regulations, that power is exercisable by statutory instrument.
- 56 Subsection (3) provides that the Secretary of State must consult Scottish Ministers before making regulations under section (2)(1)(v) specifying additional categories of appropriate officers empowered to apply for overseas production order in Scotland.
- 57 A statutory instrument containing regulations under section 4(1)(b) (which provides the power to specify additional requirements which must be satisfied before an overseas production order may be made must be laid in draft and approved by each House of Parliament before being made (i.e., is subject to the draft affirmative procedure).
- 58 Any other statutory instrument containing regulations made under the Act (other than commencement regulations made under section 20), is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of either House of Parliament (i.e. is subject to the negative resolution procedure).

Section 18: Interpretation

- 59 This section lists the definitions for various terms used in the Act, including: appropriate officer; the data protection legislation; designated international co-operation arrangement; electronic data; excepted electronic data; judge; and overseas production order.
- 60 This section also clarifies that references in this Act to "proceedings relating to an overseas production order" include proceedings for the making, variation or revocation of an order made under section 8(4) or 13(3) or (4)(b).

Section 19: Extent

61 This section sets out the territorial extent of the Act. The Act extends to the whole of the United Kingdom (except for the amendments made by Section 10(3) and (4) which have the same extent as the enactment being amended).

Section 20: Commencement

62 This section makes provision for the Act to come into force on a certain day or different days as appointed by the Secretary of State in regulations. This section and sections relating to the making of regulations, interpretation, extent and the short title come into force the day the Act is passed. Otherwise the sections of the Act come into force in accordance with regulations made by the Secretary of State, who may also make transitional, transitory or savings provisions in connection with the coming into force of any provision in the Act.

Section 21: Short title

63 This section is self-explanatory.

Commencement

64 Sections 17 (regulations), 18 (interpretation), 19 (extent), 20 (commencement), and 21 (short title) commence on Royal Assent. The remaining provisions will be brought into force by means of regulations made by the Secretary of State.

Related documents

- 65 The following documents are relevant to the Act and can be read at the stated locations:
 - Overarching fact sheet:
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/att-achment-data/file/738076/2018-09-04-COPO-Detailed Factsheet final.pdf
 - Fact sheet:
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/att
 achment data/file/720706/copo-factsheet.pdf
 - Impact assessment:
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/att
 achment_data/file/720690/crime-overseas-production-orders-bill-impact-assessment.pdf
 - Delegated Powers Memorandum:
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/att
 achment_data/file/720683/crime-overseas-production-orders-bill-delegated-powers.pdf
 - Legislative consent of the Scottish Parliament

 $\frac{https://sp-bpr-en-prod-cdnep.azureedge.net/published/J/2018/10/31/Crime--Overseas-Production-Orders--Bill--Legislative-Consent-Memorandum-considered-by-the-Justice-Committee/JS0518R12.pdf\#$

http://www.parliament.scot/S5ChamberOffice/SPLCM-S05-18.pdf

http://www.parliament.scot/parliamentarybusiness/report.aspx?r=11794

Annex A – Territorial extent and application in the United Kingdom

66 The Act extends to the whole of the United Kingdom with the exception of two consequential amendments which have the same (limited) extent as the enactment being amended.

Provision	Extends to E & W and applies to England?	Extends to E & W and applies to Wales?	Extends and applies to Scotland?	Extends and applies to Northern Ireland?
Sections 1 to 21 (except Section 10)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Section 10	In part	In part	In part	In part

Annex B - Hansard References

67 The following table sets out the dates and Hansard references for each stage of the Act's passage through Parliament.

Stage	Date	Hansard Reference
House of Lords		
Introduction	27 June 2018	Vol. 792, Col. 186 HL Bill 113 (as introduced)
Second Reading	11 July 2018	Vol. 792, Col. 919
Grand Committee – 1st sitting	5 September 2018	Vol. 792, Col. 133GC
Grand Committee – 2 nd sitting	10 September 2018	Vol. 792, Col. 181GC
Report	22 October 2018	Vol. 793, Col. 658 HL Bill 134 (as amended on Report)
Third Reading	20 November 2018	Vol. 794, Col. 138
House of Commons		
Introduction	20 November 2018	(No debate) Bill 293 2017-19 as brought from the Lords
Second Reading	3 December 2018	Vol. 650, Col. 587
Public Bill Committee	18 December 2018	PBC (Bill 293) 2017-2019, Col. 1 Bill 307 2017-19 (as amended in Public Bill Committee)
Report and Third Reading	30 January 2019	Vol. 653, Col. 849
Lords Consideration of Lords Amendments	11 February 2019	Vol. 795, Col. 1662 HL Bill 157 Commons amendments
Royal Assent	12 February 2019	House of Commons Vol. 654, Col. 771
		House of Lords Vol. 795, Col. 1735

Annex C - Progress of Bill Table

68 This Annex shows how each section and Schedule of the Act was numbered during the passage of the Bill through Parliament.

Section of the Act	Bill as Introduced in the Lords	Bill as amended on Report in the Lords	Bill as introduced in the Commons	Bill as amended in Public Bill Committee in the Commons	Bill as amended on Report in the Commons
Section 1	Clause 1	Clause 1	Clause 1	Clause 1	Clause 1
Section 2	Clause 2	Clause 2	Clause 2	Clause 2	Clause 2
Section 3	Clause 3	Clause 3	Clause 3	Clause 3	Clause 3
Section 4	Clause 4	Clause 4	Clause 4	Clause 4	Clause 4
Section 5	Clause 5	Clause 5	Clause 5	Clause 5	Clause 5
Section 6	Clause 6	Clause 6	Clause 6	Clause 6	Clause 6
Section 7	Clause 7	Clause 7	Clause 7	Clause 7	Clause 7
Section 8	Clause 8	Clause 8	Clause 8	Clause 8	Clause 8
Section 9	Clause 9	Clause 9	Clause 9	Clause 9	Clause 9
Section 10	Clause 10	Clause 10	Clause 10	Clause 10	Clause 10
Section 11	Clause 11	Clause 11	Clause 11	Clause 11	Clause 11
Section 12	Clause 12	Clause 12	Clause 12	Clause 12	Clause 12
Section 13	Clause 13	Clause 13	Clause 13	Clause 13	Clause 13
Section 14	Clause 14	Clause 14	Clause 14	Clause 14	Clause 14
Section 15	Clause 15	Clause 15	Clause 15	Clause 15	Clause 15
Section 16					Clause 16
Section 17	Clause 16	Clause 16	Clause 16	Clause 16	Clause 17
Section 18	Clause 17	Clause 17	Clause 17	Clause 17	Clause 18
Section 19	Clause 18	Clause 18	Clause 18	Clause 18	Clause 19
Section 20	Clause 19	Clause 19	Clause 19	Clause 19	Clause 20
Section 21	Clause 20	Clause 20	Clause 20	Clause 20	Clause 21

[©] Crown copyright 2019

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Jeff James, Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office and Queen's Printer of Acts of Parliament.



Online

www.tsoshop.co.uk

Mail, Telephone, Fax & E-mail

TS0

PO Box 29, Norwich, NR3 1GN

Telephone orders/General enquiries: 0333 202 5070

Fax orders: 0333 202 5080

E-mail: customer.services@tso.co.uk

Textphone: 0333 202 5077

TSO@Blackwell and other Accredited Agents

£6.90

